
1 

ADDENDUM No. 1 
 

RFP No. 22-14 
 

WWTP TERTIARY FILTER PLC REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

Bids Due: March 3, 2022 at 2:00 P.M. (Local Time) 
 
The information contained herein shall take precedence over the original documents and all 
previous addenda (if any) and is appended thereto. This Addendum includes forty-nine (49) 
pages. 
 
Offeror is to acknowledge receipt of this Addendum No. 1, including all attachments (if 
any) in its Proposal.  Proposals submitted without acknowledgment of receipt of this 
addendum may be considered nonconforming. 
 
The following forms provided within the RFP document should be included in submitted 
proposals: 
 

 Attachment C - City of Ann Arbor Non-Discrimination Declaration of Compliance 
 Attachment D - City of Ann Arbor Living Wage Declaration of Compliance 
 Attachment E - Vendor Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form of the RFP Document 

 
Proposals that fail to provide these forms listed above upon proposal opening may be 
rejected as non-responsive and may not be considered for award. 
 
 

I. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
The following Questions have been received by the City. Responses are being provided in 
accordance with the terms of the RFP.  Offerors are directed to take note in their review of the 
documents of the following questions and City responses as they affect work or details in other 
areas not specifically referenced here. 
 
Question 1: Will the City accept conversion of the existing PLC program? 
Answer 1: The City is requesting the new PLCs be programmed anew and conversion of the 

existing program will not be accepted.  
 
Question 2: Is the City willing to accept removal of the existing PLC and insertion of the new 

PLC into the existing chassis? 
Answer 2: Per the RFP, the City desires replacement of the PLC, IO modules, terminal blocks 

and cabling. 
 
Question 3: Are control descriptions available to the bidders? 
Answer 3: The City will provide filter building control descriptions and existing program 

information to the successful bidder. 
 
Question 4: Bid package did not contain drawings for panels FPP-A, FPP-B, AND FPP-C.  Can 

we get copies of these?  If prints are not available, specifically need to know if 
analog input and outputs signals are voltage or current? 

Answer 4: Drawings for FPP-A, B and C area attached. 
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Question 5: Can we get copies of the PLC programs? Need to know size/structure of programs 

for conversion. 
Answer 5: PLC programs files are attached. They are RSLogix5 ladder Logix program files. 

There are three RSLogix5 program files (FPP-A, FPP-B, and FPP-C) each control 
four filters. RSLogix5 program file CP-70 controls all Tertiary Filter Building 
filtration equipment. 

 
Question 6: If PLC programs are not made available, are all twelve filters tied into one PLC?  
Answer 6: Please see answer 5. 
 
Question 7: Can we get copy of Factory Talk View SE program?  Need to know how many tags 

need converting for CLX upgrade. 
Answer 7: It is not necessary to provide a copy of Factory Talk SE program files. The attached 

PLC-5 program files include all devices controlled and monitored by Factory Talk 
SE HMI. Vendors are welcome to visit the WWTP and see the HMI screens for the 
Tertiary Filter Building process screens.  Copies of HMI screens were included in 
RFP 22-14. 

 
Question 8: If all filters are tied into one PLC, need clarification on how plan to convert PLC 

and keep six of twelve operational at all times. 
Answer 8: All filters are not tied into one PLC.  It would be better to program PLC-CP70 first 

because it is main PLC for backwashing all filters.    

Question 9: Has there been any consideration to expanding on “the final transition to the 
upgraded system shall be completed in one 8-hour workday” window? 

Answer 9: The city recognizes that it may be difficult for final transition to be completed in one 
8-hr workday.  We understand that CP-70 changeover may require 12 hours or 
longer to complete.  Include your assumptions and identify time needed to 
complete the transition work for each PLC in your work plan. 

 
Question 10: There is another PLC panel (PLC-TF) that is next to the CP-70 panel.  There is no 

mention of this in bid package, please confirm that this panel’s PLC is not to be 
upgraded. 

Answer 10: PLC-TF is to remain.  As-built drawings for PLC-TF are attached.  To our 
knowledge PLC-TF has only two points remaining, which are UV 2A and UV 2B 
power readings and they are Ethernet IP devices. PLC-TF is reading these two 
data points by message block. 

Question 11: Can the sign-in-sheet from the mandatory pre-proposal meeting be shared with 
bidders? 

Answer 11: A copy of the meeting sign-in-sheet is attached. 
 
 
Offerors are responsible for any conclusions that they may draw from the information contained 
in the Addendum. 


































































































